
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health,  
Councillor Carl Maynard 
 
THURSDAY, 23 MAY 2024 AT 10.00 AM  
 
REMOTE MEETING VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.   Decisions made by the Lead Member on 25 April 2024  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2.   Disclosure of interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct. 

 
3.   Urgent items   

Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take 
at the appropriate part of the agenda. 

 
4.   Permitted Extension - Supported Accommodation Approved Provider List  (Pages 5 - 

48) 
Report by the Director of Adult Social Care and Health  
 

5.   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 15 May 2024 
 
Contact Belinda Trunfull, 01273 335230,  
 
Email: Belinda.Trunfull@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this 
meeting will be broadcast live on its website. The live broadcast is accessible at: 
www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default 
 
 

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH 

 

DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health, Councillor Carl 
Maynard, on 25 April 2024 at Remote Meeting via Microsoft Teams  

 

 

Councillor Stephen Shing spoke on item 4 (see minute 51) 

 

47. DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD MEMBER ON 6 MARCH 2024  

 

47.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 6 

March 2024. 

 

48. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  

 

48.1 There were none. 

 

49. URGENT ITEMS  

 

49.1 There were none. 

 

50. REPORTS  

 

50.1 A copy of the report referred to below is included in the minute book. 

 

51. HOUSEHOLD SUPPORT FUND 2024  

 

51.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Adult Social Care and Health 

regarding the proposed use of the Household Support Fund. 

 

DECISIONS 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 

 

 

51.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 

 

1) Approve the proposed plan for the use of the Fund in East Sussex in 2024 as set out in the 

report; and 

2) Delegate to the Director of Adult Social Care and Health authority to implement the scheme 

including detailed allocation decisions of the final allocation of the delivery partner element 

(£1,544,284). 

 

REASONS 

 

51.3 The announcement of an extension to the Fund provides an opportunity to support 

households with children, households with pensioners, households with a disabled person and 

other vulnerable households within East Sussex who are experiencing financial challenges and 

will be welcomed by partners. 

 

 

Page 4



 

 

 
Report to: Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health  

Date of meeting: 23 May 2024 

By: Director of Adult Social Care and Health 

Title: Permitted Extension - Supported Accommodation Approved 
Provider List 
 

Purpose: Request for Permitted Extension (24 months) - Accommodation-
based Care and Support and Housing Support for Working Age 
Adults (“Supported Living”) 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Lead Member is recommended to: 

1) Note the quality of the process that is in place and that it is efficient, drives value 
for money and meets current needs demand; and 

2) Agree the extension of the Supported Living Approved Provider List for 24 months 
until 31 May 2026. 

 

1. Background 

1.1 East Sussex County Council (ESCC) have a joint procurement framework and application 
process for organisations to become a contracted approved provider. The care groups this 
supports are; Learning Disabilities, Physical Health and Mental Health, working age adults who 
are residents of East Sussex. 

1.2 The application is completed via a dedicated online portal administrated by ESCC 
procurement. It sets out quality benchmarks required by an organisation before it can be 
considered as an approved provider. Initial quality screening is established focusing on company 
structure, finance, professional registration (if required) and insurances. This part of the selection 
stage consists of pass or fail questions before moving into an evaluation process. (Appendices 1, 
and 2) 

1.3 The process ensures ESCC establishes overarching quality and support requirements in 
the support being delivered. Commissioners also set out provisions for specialist requirements for 
specific care groups. 

1.4 This has been in place for 4 years since 1 June 2020 and has enabled required growth in 
supported living market. It has a permitted extension period of 24 months from 1 June 2024 to 31 
May 2026. 

1.5  An issue identified in the current process, it that it allows providers to successfully apply 
who have not yet established accommodation, or not in a position to deliver services. This has 
resulted in a growing number of providers that are inactive and dormant on the approved list. 

1.6  To strengthen the application stage and avoid unnecessary impact on procurement and 
commissioning resources, variation to the screening requirements is proposed to be inserted so 
that the approved provider list reflects ‘active’ provision across East Sussex. Variation will 
stipulate for the screening process, ESCC will require providers to have access to 
accommodation or a mobilisation plan and timeline in place.   

 

2. Supporting Information 

The procurement process specification 

2.1 The purpose of the process is to have a fluid tender response for the Approved Provider 
List; The provision of supported living services for working age adults service and enabling the 
growth of provision where required.   

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

 

2.2 The process is focused on driving quality. Initial quality screening is established focusing 
on company structure, finance, professional registration (if required) and insurances. This part of 
the selection stage consists of pass or fail questions. Many of these elements are assessed by 
Finance and Procurement officers. 

2.3 If the bidder passes this stage, the application moves into an evaluation process led by 
commissioners (Evaluation Panel). This requires bidders to complete a quality questionnaire 
aligned to the service specification and forms the basis of expertise and knowledge from 
providers (bidders) and evaluated at each stage of the process.   

2.4 Application responses are reviewed to ascertain which organisations have the necessary 
technical ability and skill as well as financial standing to undertake the contract and do not have 
any grounds for exclusion. (Appendix 1- blank application form) 

2.5 The evaluation of the quality questionnaire assesses the responses against the evaluation 
criteria and focus points, as communicated to bidders in the portal, and panel member will 
allocate a score between 0 and 5. 

2.6 Any question that scores below 3 does not pass the quality threshold to access the 
approved provider list. Bidding organisations meeting these requirements are awarded as 
contract providers on the Approved Provider List. 

2.7 Further variation to the specification (Appendix 2 -Schedule 2) will set out the 
requirements for bidders to have available properties or a mobilisation plan. This will ensure only 
providers that are positioned to implement a service in reasonable time can progress. This is due 
to time spent processing applications for providers who don’t possess property to deliver their 
provision. 

 

Current expenditure on Supported Accommodation  

2.8 The annual ESCC expenditure (based on 2022-23) for supported living was £31million in 
2023-24.  

Learning Disability  £19,576,102  
Mental Health  £7,803,378  
Physical Disability  £3,934,548  
Total   £31,314,027 

 

2.9 Although the funding levels are estimated to be similar, the current service demand is 
expected to grow (differently across care groups) to meet statutory requirements, ensuring 
services are available. This process delivers value for money as all providers on the list are 
expected to deliver care at the rate range published by ESCC.   

 

3. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 

3.1 The current arrangements to commission new providers are efficient and do not require 
full scale commissioning programmes that would otherwise require significant co-ordination and 
staffing resource.  

3.2 The current application process is working, it sets out well designed quality benchmarks 
for service provision and ensures a fluid growth in the provider market. 

3.3 Extending for 2 years will enable time for commissioners and partners to fully scope out 
the future priorities, further consider opportunities to develop the specification focusing on clients 
with complex needs where there are currently limited services in county.  

3.4 The current procurement arrangement supports small and medium size providers to 
design and develop care where there are significant needs for growth (e.g. Wealden and Rural 
Rother) and minimises growth in other areas where provision is at reasonable capacity. 

3.5 The incremental growth of the provider market is a priority across all care groups and the 
provider market can expand and support pressures in the system. A recent Mental Health audit 

Page 6



 

 

highlights that the level of service to meet demand requires a 10% increase with a focus on 
complex needs. 

3.6 There is a continued demand for high quality supported living services (and 
accommodation) for people with a learning disability in East Sussex. Increasing settled 
accommodation options continues to be a key priority and there is a demand for growth within 
this service area.  

3.7 It is recommended to support the extension of the current Approved List contracts, 
invoking the 2-year allowed for extension option until 31st May 2026. 

3.8  It is recommended to agree the modification for providers to have accommodation 
available or mobilisation plans in place for requirements to be included on the approved list 
application process. 

 
MARK STAINTON  
Director of Adult Social Care and Health  
 
Contact Officer: Kenny Mackay 
Tel. No: 07812574666 

Email: Kenny.mackay@eastsussex.gov.uk 

 

Local Members  

All Members  

 

 

Page 7

mailto:Kenny.mackay@eastsussex.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Application Form For East Sussex County Council’s Approved List For The Provision Of Supported Living Services For Working 
Age Adults  

 

 

 

 

APPLICATION FORM  

EAST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL’S APPROVED LIST FOR 
THE PROVISION OF SUPPORTED LIVING SERVICES FOR 

WORKING AGE ADULTS  
  

UPDATED DECEMBER 2021 

 

Page 9

Appendix 1



Document 1.a - Application Form 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. CLIENT GROUP and SERVICES PROVIDED  

1 BASIC DETAILS OF YOUR ORGANISATION 

1.1 Name of Organisation 
 

 

1.2 Contact Name 
 

 

1.3 Contact Position (Job Title) 
 

 

1.4 Correspondence Address 
 
 

 
 

1.5 Telephone Number 
 

 

1.6 E-mail Address 
 

 

1.7 Authorised Contract 
Signatory Name 

 

1.8 Authorised Contract 
Signatory E-mail Address 

 

1.9 Company Registration 
Number 
 

 

1.10 Registered VAT number (if 
applicable) 

 

1.11 Other Registration Number 
(please clarify i.e. Charity, 
Housing Association) 

 

1.12 Date of Registration 
 

 

1.13 Registration Address if 
different from 1.4 
 

 

1.14 Please tick the relevant 
description of your 
organisations Legal Entity 

i) Public Ltd Company  

ii) Limited Company                                                 

iii) Partnership  

iv) Sole Trader  

v) Registered Charity  

vi) Provident Society  

vii) Other (please specify)  

Page 10



Please tick the relevant box/es 
1A Mental Health – Accommodation and Housing Support 

 

 

1B Mental Health – Personal Care  

2A Learning Disability – Accommodation and Housing Support 
 

 

2B Learning Disability – Personal Care 
 

 

3A Physical Disability, Sensory Impairment – Accommodation and Housing Support  

3B Physical Disability, Sensory Impairment– Personal Care  

 
 
 
 

3 FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

 
 

3.1 Applicants are required to self-certify that they meet the minimum financial 
requirements for economic and financial standing as part of the selection process.    

 
 

3.2 Please complete Document 2A Self Certification Test. The Council will assess the 
Applicant’s financial suitability by reference to the criteria set out in the provided 
Approved List Guidance and Instructions document (‘Economic & Financial Standing 
Criteria’).   
 
Please ensure if the alternative option is selected all alternative evidence is 
submitted with your application.  Any application that selects this option but fails 
to provide the evidence as part of the completed application will be deemed 
unsuccessful as it will fail to meet the Council’s submission requirements. 

 
 

 

4 REQUIRED CERTIFICATION 

Please provide electronic copies of the following documentation with your submission.  
Tick the relevant boxes to confirm their inclusion. 

4.1 CQC Registration (if your organisation is providing Personal Care 
or direct support with medication) 
 

 

4.2 Other (please specify) 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



5 INSURANCE 

Please provide details of your current insurance cover: 

5.1 Employer’s Liability  

5.2 Public Liability Insurance  

5.3 Other (please provide details)  

5.4 

The Council requires a minimum of £10 million for this contract for 
each and every claim under a company’s Public Liability 
insurance policy.  Please confirm that you will provide this level of 
cover if successfully awarded entry to the Select List. 

YES/NO 

 
 
 

6 a GROUNDS FOR EXCLUSION – MANDATORY 

Within the past five years, has your organisation (or any member 
of your proposed consortium, if applicable), Directors or partner 
or any other person who has powers of representation, decision 
or control been convicted of any of the following offences? 

 

 

1. conspiracy within the meaning of section 1 or 1A of the 
Criminal Law Act 1977 or article 9 or 9A of the Criminal 
Attempts and Conspiracy (Northern Ireland) Order 1983 
where that conspiracy relates to participation in a criminal 
organisation as defined in Article 2 of Council Framework 
Decision 2008/841/JHA on the fight against organised 
crime; 

 
YES/NO 

2. corruption within the meaning of section 1(2) of the Public 
Bodies Corrupt Practices Act 1889 or section 1 of the 
Prevention of Corruption Act 1906; 

 
YES/NO 

3. the common law offence of bribery; 
YES/NO 

4. bribery within the meaning of sections 1, 2 or 6 of the 
Bribery Act 2010; or section 113 of the Representation of 
the People Act 1983; 

YES/NO 

5. any of the following offences, where the offence relates to 
fraud affecting the European Communities’ financial 
interests as defined by Article 1 of the Convention on the 
protection of the financial interests of the European 
Communities: 

YES/NO 

(i) the offence of cheating the Revenue; YES/NO 

Page 12



(ii) the offence of conspiracy to defraud; YES/NO 

(iii) fraud or theft within the meaning of the Theft Act 1968, the 
Theft Act (Northern Ireland) 1969, the Theft Act 1978 or the Theft 
(Northern Ireland) Order 1978; 

 
YES/NO 

(iv) fraudulent trading within the meaning of section 458 of the 
Companies Act 1985, article 451 of the Companies (Northern Ireland) 
Order 1986 or section 993 of the Companies Act 2006; 

 
YES/NO 

(v) fraudulent evasion within the meaning of section 170 of the 
Customs and Excise Management Act 1979 or section 72 of the 
Value Added Tax Act 1994; 

 
YES/NO 

(vi) an offence in connection with taxation in the European Union 
within the meaning of section 71 of the Criminal Justice Act 1993; 

 
YES/NO 

(vii) destroying, defacing or concealing of documents or procuring 
the execution of a valuable security within the meaning of section 20 
of the Theft Act 1968 or section 19 of the Theft Act (Northern Ireland) 
1969; 

 
YES/NO 

(viii) fraud within the meaning of section 2, 3 or 4 of the Fraud Act 
2006; or 

YES/NO 

(ix) the possession of articles for use in frauds within the meaning 
of section 6 of the Fraud Act 2006, or the making, adapting, supplying 
or offering to supply articles for use in frauds within the meaning of 
section 7 of that Act; 

 
YES/NO 

6. any offence listed— 

 

 

(i) in section 41 of the Counter Terrorism Act 2008; or YES/NO 

(ii) in Schedule 2 to that Act where the court has determined that 
there is a terrorist connection; 

 
YES/NO 

7. any offence under sections 44 to 46 of the Serious Crime 
Act 2007 which relates to an offence covered by 
subparagraph (f); 

 
YES/NO 

8. money laundering within the meaning of sections 340(11) 
and 415 of the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002; 

 
YES/NO 

9. an offence in connection with the proceeds of criminal 
conduct within the meaning of section 93A, 93B or 93C of 
the Criminal Justice Act 1988 or article 45, 46 or 47 of the 
Proceeds of Crime (Northern Ireland) Order 1996; 

 
 

YES/NO 

Page 13



 
 
 
6 b 

 
GROUNDS FOR EXCLUSION - DISCRETIONARY 
 

Within the past three years, please indicate if any of the following 
situations have applied, or currently apply, to your organisation. 

 

1. your organisation has violated applicable obligations referred to in 
regulation 56 (2) of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 in the 
fields of environmental, social and labour law established by EU 
law, national law, collective agreements or by the international 
environmental, social and labour law provisions listed in Annex X 
to the Public Contracts Directive as amended from time to time; 

   
 
 

YES/NO 

10. an offence under section 4 of the Asylum and Immigration 
(Treatment of Claimants etc.) Act 2004; 

 
YES/NO 

11. an offence under section 59A of the Sexual Offences Act 
2003; 

YES/NO 

12. an offence under section 71 of the Coroners and Justice 
Act 2009 

YES/NO 

13. an offence in connection with the proceeds of drug 
trafficking within the meaning of section 49, 50 or 51 of the 
Drug Trafficking Act 1994; or 

 
YES/NO 

14. any other offence within the meaning of Article 57(1) of the 
Public Contracts Directive— 

 
YES/NO 

(i) as defined by the law of any jurisdiction outside England and 
Wales and Northern Ireland; or 

 
YES/NO 

(ii) created, after the day on which these Regulations were made, 
in the law of England and Wales or Northern Ireland. 

 
YES/NO 

 
15 Non-payment of taxes 
Has it been established by a judicial or administrative decision having 
final and binding effect in accordance with the legal provisions of any 
part of the United Kingdom or the legal provisions of the country in 
which your organisation is established (if outside the UK), that your 
organisation is in breach of obligations related to the payment of tax 
or social security contributions? 
(If you have answered Yes to this question, please use a separate 
Appendix to provide further details. Please also use this Appendix to 
confirm whether you have paid, or have entered into a binding 
arrangement with a view to paying, including, where applicable, any 
accrued interest and/or fines?) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

YES/NO 

Page 14



2. your organisation is bankrupt or is the subject of insolvency or 
winding-up proceedings, where your assets are being 
administered by a liquidator or by the court, where it is in an 
arrangement with creditors, where its business activities are 
suspended or it is in any analogous situation arising from a 
similar procedure under the laws and regulations of any State; 

 
 

YES/NO 

3. your organisation is guilty of grave professional misconduct,  
which renders its integrity questionable; 

 
YES/NO 

4. your organisation has entered into agreements with other 
economic operators aimed at distorting competition; 

 
YES/NO 

5. your organisation has a conflict of interest within the meaning of 
regulation 24 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 that 
cannot be effectively remedied by other, less intrusive, measures; 

 
YES/NO 

6. the prior involvement of your organisation in the preparation of 
the procurement procedure has resulted in a distortion of 
competition, as referred to in regulation 41, that cannot be 
remedied by other, less intrusive, measures; 

 
YES/NO 

7. your organisation has shown significant or persistent deficiencies 
in the performance of a substantive requirement under a prior 
public contract, a prior contract with a contracting entity, or a prior 
concession contract, which led to early termination of that prior 
contract, damages or other comparable sanctions; 

 
 

YES/NO 

8. your organisation— 

(i) has been guilty of serious misrepresentation in supplying the 
information required for the verification of the absence of grounds for 
exclusion or the fulfilment of the selection criteria; or 

(ii) has withheld such information or is not able to submit supporting 
documents required under regulation 59 of the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015; or 

 
 

YES/NO 

9. your organisation has undertaken to 
YES/NO 

(i) unduly influence the decision-making process of the contracting 
authority, or 

 
YES/NO 

(ii) obtain confidential information that may confer upon your 
organisation undue advantages in the procurement procedure; or 

 
YES/NO 

10. your organisation has negligently provided misleading information 
that may have a material influence on decisions concerning 
exclusion, selection or award. 

 
YES/NO 

 
 

Page 15



 
7 

 

SERVICE SPECIFIC QUESTIONS 
 

 
 

Where a maximum word count of 600 words is stated, it is advised that a 
minimum of 300 words are submitted. 

 
7.1 What does your organisation view as the three most important elements of 

providing effective care and support services to Working Age Adults? 
 (Arial 11, maximum 600 words per Client Group) 
 

Learning Disabilities: 
 
 

 

Mental Health: 
 
 

 

Physical Disabilities, Sensory Impairment and Long Term Conditions: 
 
 

 
  
7.2 How do you/will you ensure that you are able to provide the Service in a cost 

effective and sustainable way and deliver best value for tax payer’s money?  
Please provide practical examples. 

 (Arial 11, maximum 600 words, one response required) 
 

  
 

 
7.3 How do you/will you ensure the services you provide promote independence 

whilst ensuring the safety, health & well-being of your clients?  Please provide 
practical examples. 
(Arial 11, maximum 600 words per Client Group) 

 

Learning Disabilities: 
 
 

 

Page 16



Mental Health: 
 
 

 
 

Physical Disabilities, Sensory Impairment and Long Term Conditions: 
 
 

 
 
 
7.4 How do you/will you ensure the Clients who use your service have choice and 

control over the support they receive?  Please provide practical examples. 
(Arial 11, maximum 600 words per Client Group) 

 

Learning Disabilities: 
 
 

 

Mental Health: 
 
 

 

Physical Disabilities, Sensory Impairment and Long Term Conditions: 
 
 

 
 
7.5 How will the service you provide enhance peoples’ quality of life and their 

ability to actively participate in the wider community? 
(Arial 11, maximum 600 words per Client Group) 

 

Learning Disabilities: 
 
 

 

Mental Health: 
 
 

 

Physical Disabilities, Sensory Impairment and Long Term Conditions: 
 
 

 
  

Page 17



7.6 How will you work with clients and partner agencies to positively manage 
different types of risk to ensure that the health and wellbeing of clients is 
upheld and the needs of the local community well considered? 
(Arial 11, maximum 600 words per Client Group) 

 
Learning Disabilities: 
 
 

 

Mental Health: 
 
 

 

Physical Disabilities, Sensory Impairment and Long Term Conditions: 
 
 
 

 

 

7.7 The Service Provider’s Sub-Contractors: Please complete table: 
 

 

7.8  Please list the service addresses where the service/s will be provided at for 
each client Group. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 

Identity of Service Provider’s 
Sub-contractors, if applicable 

[Insert details of all permitted sub-contractors, 
including full legal name, registered address 
and location where processing of Personal 
Data will occur and a description of the 
processing operations undertaken by each 
sub-contractor. Please note that you are not 
permitted to engage any sub-contractors to 
process any personal or special category data 
without prior written approval of the Councils.] 

Purposes for the processing of 
the data:  

 

Duration of the processing of 
Council Data by Sub-
Contractor: 

 

Page 18



 
 
8 

 

SERVICE SPECIFIC CLARIFICATION QUESTIONS 
 

Please confirm your approval that information including responses to the Service 
Specification questions from your previous 2015-2018 application will be used as 
evidence to support this application onto the 2019 Approved List. 
 

 

8.1 What does your organisation view 
as the three most important 
elements of providing effective care 
and support services to Working 
Age Adults? 

YES/NO 

8.2 How do you/will you ensure that 
you are able to provide the Service 
in a cost effective and sustainable 
way and deliver best value for tax 
payer’s money?  Please provide 
practical examples. 

YES/NO 

8.3 How do you/will you ensure the 
services you provide promote 
independence whilst ensuring the 
safety, health & well-being of your 
clients?  Please provide practical 
examples 

YES/NO 

8.4 How do you/will you ensure the 
Clients who use your service have 
choice and control over the support 
they receive?  Please provide 
practical examples. 

YES/NO 

8.5 How will the service you provide 
enhance peoples’ quality of life and 
their ability to actively participate in 
the wider community? 

YES/NO 

8.6 How will you work with clients and 
partner agencies to positively 
manage different types of risk to 
ensure that the health and 
wellbeing of clients is upheld and 
the needs of the local community 
well considered? 

YES/NO 

If you have answered “No” to questions 
8.1-8.6 above, please submit a new 
response to the relevant question. Any 
new response will be evaluated in line 
with the guidance for section 8. 
 

 

 
  

Page 19



 
9 

 
DECLARATION 

 

I declare that to the best of my knowledge the answers submitted in this Application 
(and any supporting modules) are correct. I understand that the information will be 
used in the evaluation process to assess my organisation’s suitability to be accepted 
on the Approved List for Working Age Adult Supported Housing. 
 

 
 

FORM COMPLETED BY 
 

 

 
Organisation Name: 

 
 

 
Name: 

 

 
Position (Job Title): 

 
 

 
Date: 

 
 

 
Telephone number: 

 

Signature: 
 
 
 

 
 
I understand that by signing this Application I accept the following: 
 
Question for Care and Support Providers: 
As a provider of care and support you have a duty of care to your clients.  Part of this 
duty of care is to actively monitor the living environment and to report any safety 
concerns to the landlord and/or statutory enforcement authorities in order that they 
may discharge their statutory duties.  Please tick this box to indicate that you 
understand this and accept this as part of your wider duty of care to your clients. 
 

 
 
Question for Care and Support Providers who are also landlords:  
If you are, or it is your intention to, provide care and support services to clients in 
properties where you are also the landlord, please tick this box to indicate that the 
physical housing environment is safe, that all certificates in relation to Fire, health 
and safety and building regulations are in place and up to date and all other 
regulations and minimum standards as required by your local housing department 
and all other relevant regulatory authorities, are met. 
 

 
 

 

Page 20



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

1 

 

SCHEDULE 2 – CATEGORIES AND SPECIFICATION 

PART 1: CATEGORIES 

1A Mental Health (Accommodation and Housing Support) 

1B Mental Health (Personal Care) 

2A Learning Disabilities (Accommodation and Housing Support) 

2B Learning Disabilities (Personal Care) 

3A Physical Disabilities and Sensory Impairment (Accommodation 
and Housing Support) 

3B Physical Disabilities and Sensory Impairment (Personal Care) 

Page 21

Appendix 2



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

2 

 

PART 2 –SPECIFICATION 

 

Service Specification 

for the provision of 
accommodation-based care and 
support and housing support for 
Working Age Adults, including 

• Physical disabilities, sensory impairment and long term 

conditions 

• Learning disabilities 

• Mental health 

May 2019 

Page 22



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

3 

 

CONTENTS 

  Section Page 

1. Introduction 1 

2. Establishing the Approved List 1 

3. Partnership 2 

4. The Purpose of the Specified Service 3 

5. Principles and Value of Service Provision 3 

6. Support Planning and Service Start 6 

7. Reviews 6 

8. Specification of Quality, Workforce and Service 
Delivery Standards 

7 

9. Specification of Quality Standards in relation to 
Risk Management 

11 

10. Specification of Quality Standards in relation to Health 
and Safety 

12 

11. Specification of Quality Standards in relation to 
Housing Environment 

12 

12. Specification of Quality Standards in relation to Policies 
and Procedures 

13 

13. Client outcomes, Quality and Performance Monitoring 14 

14. Developing the Service 16 

15. The Council’s Responsibilities 16 

16. Glossary 17 
 

List of Appendices 

1. 
Specific Requirements for Adults with a Physical Disability, 
Sensory Impairment and/or Long Term Conditions 

18 

2.   Specific Requirements for Adults with Learning Disabilities 20 

3.   
Specific Requirements for Adults with Mental Health 
Support Needs 

22 

Page 23



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

4 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 1.1 This document (“Specification”) has been developed by East Sussex County 
Council’s Adult Social Care Department (the “Council”) to promote a consistent 
approach in the commissioning and provision of accommodation based care and 
support AND housing support for Working Age Adults. It specifies services to be 
provided to Working Age Adults who are eligible for Adult Social Care who are 
living in a supported living service. 
 
For clarity, both personal care and housing related support to be delivered 
under this specification relates to social care provision to meet eligible adult 
social care needs under the Care Act. Non-care related support, covered by 
other sources such as housing benefit sits outside of this specification.   

 1.2 This Specification includes client-specific requirements for the provision of 
accommodation based care and support and housing support for: 
• People with learning disabilities; 
• People with mental health support needs; 
• People with physical disabilities, sensory impairment and long term 

conditions. 
See Appendix 1 for details. 

1.3  This Specification has been developed in the context of the Care Act (2014), it is 
intended to specify those service elements and good practice required of the 
organisations/ persons providing accommodation based care and support AND 
housing support for Working Age Adults (the “Specified Service”). 

 1.4 This Specification (and its appendices) will ensure a clear and shared 
understanding of expectations and quality standards in relation to the provision of 
the specified service between Commissioners (ESCC) and Approved Providers. 

1.5  The standards set out in this Specification are the minimum requirements relating 
to the Specified Services. 

2 ESTABLISHING THE APPROVED LIST 

2.1 This Specification has been developed to support the commissioning and 
procurement of care and support services provided as part of the Council’s Capital 
build supported living schemes and spot purchased supported living services. 

 2.2 The Council has established an “Approved List” that will be used to identify 
providers who meet the quality standards and service delivery requirements set out 
in this Specification to deliver the Specified Services (“Approved Providers”). The 
Approved List will be continually open to allow new providers to apply to join and 
become an Approved Provider at any time. 

2.3  New accommodation-based packages of care and support will be 
commissioned directly by the Council from Approved Providers using the 
processes set out in the Approved List Agreement. 

 2.4 Where care and support services are commissioned by the Council for Capital-  

build supported living schemes (a “Scheme”), ‘core’ (or ‘background’) levels of the 
Specified Service will be commissioned, including night and some day provision, 
using the Approved List. The core level of service will be shared across clients 

Page 24



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

5 

 

living in the Scheme. Clients can use their Personal Budget to purchase any 
‘additional’ support hours over and above the ‘core’ level of support, from an 
Approved Provider of their choice, or take this as a Direct Payment. 

2.5  Where appropriate and in consultation with Care Management the Service Provider 
shall make flexibilities available to clients which will be executed by Brokerage. 

2.6 For each client, the volume of any additional service can be managed over a four 
week period, rather than daily or weekly, enabling the Approved Provider to 
respond flexibly to the changing needs and preferences of the client. Approved 
Providers delivering any additional services are responsible for ensuring that the 
total level of support provided over the four week period does not exceed the 
Personal Budget for the relevant client. 

2.7 If in any four week period the additional support provided to a client is likely to 
exceed their Personal Budget, the Approved Provider(s) delivering those additional 
services shall take responsibility for informing the client of the likely over 
commitment and the implications for their charging. The Approved Provider(s) will 
also inform the Care Manager or Health and Social Care Connect on 0345 60 80 
191. 

2.8 Approved Providers, where requested by clients or their representatives, will 
support the development of pooled personal budgets between clients. 

2.9 Throughout the remainder of this Specification, the term “Service Provider” shall 
be used to describe any Approved Provider delivering the Specified Services. 

3. PARTNERSHIP 

3.1  The Council wishes to work in partnership with the Service Provider in delivering 
a high quality of support to its clients and hopes to maximise the use of available 
resources by establishing longer-term, more integrated relationships. By entering 
into the Approved List Agreement the Council and the Service Provider are each 
making a commitment to: 

• Share key objectives; 
• Communicate with each other clearly and regularly; 
• Be open and honest with each other, to respect parties’ views and to 

conduct themselves in a professional manner; 
• Listen to, and understand, each other’s point of view; 
• Share relevant information, expertise and plans; 
• Avoid duplication wherever possible; 
• Seek to avoid conflicts but, where they arise, to resolve them quickly at a 

local level; 
• Seek continuous improvement by working together in order to achieve 

optimum benefit from the resources available and by identifying better, 
more efficient ways of working and delivering services; 

• Promote the partnership approach at all levels in the organisations (e.g. 
through joint induction/training initiatives); 

• Have a contractual framework which is flexible enough to reflect changing 
needs, priorities and lessons learnt, and which encourages client 
participation. 

Page 25



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

6 

 

3.2  Any specific communication between the commissioner (s) and the Service 
Provider will be defined and agreed at the start of any service delivery, and this will 
support effective delivery, monitoring and evaluation of services. 

 

3.3 It is the responsibility of the Service Provider to work effectively in partnership with 
the provider of the accommodation / housing management service (i.e. the 
landlord) in order to ensure effective joined up delivery of service, effective 
communication and best outcomes for clients. 

3.4 The Service Provider will support clients to undertake some basic housing 
management tasks, such as reporting of repairs, and will support effective liaison 
with the Registered Housing Provider as appropriate. Such tasks and how they are 
carried out are likely to vary from scheme to scheme. 

3.5 The Service Provider will establish and maintain partnerships with other statutory 
(e.g. NHS, District or Borough Councils etc) and non-statutory partners to ensure 
they are able to deliver the specified service effectively and ensure clients have 
access to all appropriate community services. 

4 THE PURPOSE OF THE SPECIFIED SERVICE 

4.1 The overall purpose of the Specified Service is to: 

• Provide person centred and flexible personal care, support and specific housing 
support to enable Working Age Adults to maintain and develop their 
independence within the community; 

• Promote social inclusion and social capital (see Section 5.8); 
• Promote health and well-being and personal safety; 
• To improve the choice of housing and support options available to Working Age 

Adults. 

4.2 The Service Provider will ensure that referrals all responded to within three (3) 
working days. 

4.3 The Service Provider is required to provide housing support, enabling clients to: 

• Understand their tenancy agreement; 

• Pay their rent, service charges and ultility bills, manage their council tax; 

• Access and manage their legal welfare entitlements; 

• Understand their rights and responsibilities as a neighbour; 

• Access floating support services for specific time limited interventions, where this 
is considered appropriate; 

• Set boundaries; managing noise levels, incidents with visitors, to ensure good 
sleep is maintained 
 

5 PRINCIPLES AND VALUES OF SERVICE PROVISION 

5.1 The Service Provider is required to produce a written statement of their values in 
accessible format. This statement should make reference to the values and 
principles described in this Specification. It is essential that these principles 
underpin the delivery of the Specified Service. 

Page 26



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

7 

 

5.2 RIGHTS - the maintenance of all entitlements associated with citizenship 

The Service Provider will ensure that: 

• Clients are respected as citizens, irrespective of their living situation and the 
support services they receive; 

• Clients’ rights and choices are not restricted. Institutional practices and 
regimes which emphasise administrative convenience and which restrict 
rights and choices shall not be permitted; 

• Clients have the right to think and act without having to refer to others, 
including the right to say no to help. As in all living situations, these 
individual rights may not be completely unfettered and must be exercised 
in the context of the health, safety and needs of other people; 

• Clients have the right to take risks. Risk taking is a normal aspect of every 
day life. Risks shall be fully assessed and reasons for actions clearly 
documented within the client’s Support Plan and client plan (see section 9). 

5.3  PERSONALISATION, CHOICE AND CONTROL – the opportunity to make 
independent choices, with support where appropriate, from a range of 
options and support to maximise control over their life and personal affairs.  

5.3.1  The Council is committed to developing approaches to supporting people that 
maximise choice and control over their support arrangements. To this end, all 
services commissioned by the Council will be offered to eligible clients in ways 
that are flexible and are tailored to their individual needs and preferences, whilst 
at the same time are sustainable and offer best value for money. 

5.3.2 The Service Provider will also ensure that: 

• Services are designed and delivered in person centred ways; 
• Services are planned and delivered within a holistic approach and within the 

context of a person’s whole life (not just their services) and the other supports 
they draw upon in their life. Providers will support clients to develop their client 
plans in this context; 

• Clients are fully involved in the planning and review of their service. Copies of 
client plans and other documentation relating to their service should be made 
available in a format which is accessible to them; 

• Clients are supported and encouraged to make and communicate independent 
choices as individuals, using a “Total Communication” approach. Total 
Communication describes an approach to supporting a person which 
recognises an individual’s support needs around communication, using 
communication aids and techniques to create a supportive communication 
environment; 

• It must be assumed that an individual is capable of exercising choice and 
making decisions for themselves unless there is sufficient evidence to the 
contrary (as set out in the Mental Capacity Act Code of Practice). Where a client 
lacks mental capacity, the Service Provider must work within the principles and 
guidance of the Mental Capacity Act 2005 and work with others who can 
interpret and represent the client’s views and best interests. 
 

Page 27



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

8 

 

5.4  INDEPENDENCE – the opportunity to think and act without reference to another 
person. 

The Service Provider will ensure that services are delivered in ways that: 

• Promote independence and recognise the capacity of each individual  
to learn, develop their skills and achieve greater levels of  
independence in their life; 

• Are outcome focused and that recognise the capacity of individuals to 
change and develop. 

5.5 INCLUSION and FULFILLMENT – clients are supported to realise personal 
aspirations in all aspects of daily life and be included and participate in their local 
community and community life and develop networks of friends and relationships. 

The Service Provider will ensure that, within the scope of each client’s 
Personal Budget: 

• Clients are supported to access universal community facilities and 
participate in community life; 

• Clients are supported in ways that support and encourage them to 
develop their social networks and maintain friends and relationships; 

• Clients are supported to access agencies that will support them towards 
gaining employment; 

• Consideration is given to employment opportunities for clients within 
their own organisation (in liaison with supported employment agencies 
as appropriate). 

5.6  DIGNITY and RESPECT – recognition of the value of each individual regardless 
of the circumstances. 

The Service Provider will ensure that: 
• Clients feel that they are treated with respect and valued as a person and 

their right to privacy is upheld; 
• Personal care and support is provided in a way which maintains and 

respects the privacy, dignity and lifestyle of the person receiving care at all 
times; 

• Support is provided in the least intrusive way at all times; 
• Clients are acknowledged as individuals; 
• Clients, their relatives and their representatives are treated with courtesy at all 

times; 
• Clients are addressed by the name they prefer at all times. 

5.7 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY – the promotion of equality and diversity within the 
organisation at all levels and across all relevant activities 

The Service Provider will ensure that: 

• Care and support workers are sensitive and responsive to the race, culture, 
religion, age, disability, gender and sexuality of the client and their relatives 
and representatives; 

• A system exists to identify, challenge and respond appropriately to 
incidents of institutional racism and indirect/direct discrimination by any 
staff member or client; 

Page 28



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

9 

 

• A robust level of training and support is available to staff to promote an 
effective understanding of the cultural and ethnic needs of clients. 
 

5.8  SOCIAL CAPITAL 

5.8.1  Social capital is generally understood to be the value added to society by 
grassroots collective action that is driven by a shared interest on the part of the 
people involved. This is often known as civil society and is distinct from the state 
and the private sector. The voluntary and community organisations that make 
up civil society provide the structures and opportunities for people to become 
more engaged and active in their communities. This results in bonds and 
networks being formed between diverse people and organisations which have a 
shared goal or interest. The sharing of the knowledge and expertise rooted in 
local communities leads to activity and services that can change people’s lives 
for the better. 

5.8.2  The Council wants clients and citizens in East Sussex to benefit from the added 
value brought to services through the building of locally accountable social 
capital. The Service Provider will ensure that, through the delivery of the specified 
service, they contribute to building social capital in their local communities, for 
example, by: 

• Promoting client involvement and client led approaches to the 
development of the specified service; 

• Utilising the local volunteer pool; 
• Making the most of the knowledge, experience and information that exists 

in local communities and the connections between clients and local 
community groups. 

6. SUPPORT PLANNING AND SERVICE START 

6.1 With the consent of the client, the Service Provider will receive a copy of a Support 
Plan that has been developed by the Care Manager, in consultation with the client 
and their personal network. Working with the client and their personal network, the 
Service Provider will then support the client to develop a client plan that sets out 
how the client outcomes (set out in the Support Plan) will be achieved. 

6.2 The client plan shall be based on the client’s views about the best way to meet the 
outcomes in their Support Plan. 

6.3 A copy of the client plan shall be forwarded to the appropriate Care Manager within 
an agreed timeframe. 

6.4 The Council recognises that during the first six (6) weeks of a new referral being 
received by the Service Provider, the Service Provider may need to reassess the 
support needs and adjust the client plan accordingly. The Service Provider shall 
forward the modified client plan to the appropriate Care Manager within three (3) 
working days of completion of the modified client plan. 

7. REVIEWS 

7.1 The Council will Review the Support Plan at agreed intervals thereafter. 

Page 29



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

10 

 

7.2 The Service Provider must notify the Council if it believes the client’s needs have 
changed to the extent that the Support Plan needs to be reviewed. 

7.3  The Service Provider must ensure clients have clear procedures and opportunities 
to initiate a review of their service. 

7.4 Where requested, the Service Provider will support the Care Manager to coordinate 
and organise formal care management reviews. They will be held within a 
reasonable time, giving consideration to the time commitments of the participants, 
the date of the last formal review and the urgency of the need. 

7.5 The review will address the extent to which the client outcomes specified in the 
Support Plan are being achieved. The client’s Support Plan (and Personal Budget 
if required) will be amended as appropriate following the review. If there are 
significant changes a new assessment may need to be completed. 

 

7.6 Reviews will be person centred and will involve the client, their personal network, 
the Service Provider or designated representative and the Care Manager. Such 
other people that appear necessary and are wanted by the client may be invited by 
agreement. Consideration will be given to ensure convenience and adequate 
notice for all participants wherever possible. 

7.7 Following a review, the Service Provider is required to implement any agreed 
changes to the Support Plan and support the client to revise and update their 
own client plan. 

7.8 There may be occasions when there is an urgent need to review the number of 
hours of the Specified Service provided to a client, or for the addition of a specific 
task(s) to alleviate risk arising from an emergency situation. When a member of 
staff identifies an emergency situation, it is expected that sufficient and appropriate 
action will be taken to ensure the immediate health, safety and comfort of the client 
prior to their being left alone. 

7.9 The Service Provider may use their professional discretion to deliver an 
emergency service up to a maximum of 2 (two) hours in respect of any single 
week. The Service Provider must inform the Council’s Care Management Team 
as soon as is reasonably practicable on the day of such changes in order that a 
reassessment of the client's needs, can be completed if appropriate. When 
situations arise outside the Council's usual working hours the Emergency Duty 
Service (“EDS”) must be contacted and authorisation sought for any additional 
services required. Failure to inform the Council’s Supply Management Team and 
receive authority to continue the increased hours, pending a review, will remove 
the obligation for the Council to meet the additional costs. 

 

8. SPECIFICATION OF QUALITY, WORKFORCE AND SERVICE DELIVERY 
STANDARDS 

8.1 Where the Service Provider is providing Personal Care, the Service Provider will 
be registered as a provider of domiciliary care with the care regulator and will 
maintain registration throughout the duration of service provision. 

8.2 In line with ESCC Safeguarding Adults policies and any future amended 
versions of this policy, the Service Provider must ensure that clients are 

Page 30



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

11 

 

safeguarded from any form of abuse, neglect or exploitation in accordance with 
written policies and procedures. The Service Provider must meet the standards set 
out in The Sussex Safeguarding Adults Policy and Procedures produced by the 
Safeguarding Adults Boards of Brighton and Hove, East Sussex and West Sussex 
(Edition 4, 2018). http://sussexsafeguardingadults.procedures.org.uk/  

8.3 With respect to service delivery standards, the Service Provider will ensure all staff 
are familiar with the Skills for Care Code of Conduct for Healthcare Support 
Workers and Adult Social Care Workers in England (2013) 
https://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/Documents/Standards-legislation/Code-of-
Conduct/Code-of-Conduct.pdf.  

8.4 The Service Provider will ensure the Specified Services are delivered in person 
centred ways. This includes the following requirements: 

• Staff guidance and training is in place to ensure continued and on-
ongoing development around person centred approaches, client 
involvement and Total Communication; 

• Specified Services will be planned and delivered within a holistic approach 
and within the context of a client’s life and other supports they draw upon in 
their life. Client plans will be developed in this context. The Service Provider 
must be familiar with the roles and expected functions being undertaken by 
any other providers and/or informal carers contributing to the care package; 

• Specified Services are designed and delivered based on a person centred 
assessment of each client’s needs and wishes; 

• The client has an accessible person centred, outcome based client plan that 
reflects their needs and wishes; 

• Copies of Support Plans and other documentation relating to their service 
should be owned by clients and made available in a format which is 
accessible to them; 

• Clients are supported and encouraged to make and communicate 
independent choices as individuals, using a Total Communication 
approach; 

• Support staff are encouraged to develop a support relationship with clients 
so that they are able to recognise emotional states e.g. sadness, 
happiness, frustration; 

• Clients are supported to celebrate special holidays and festivals according 
to their beliefs and wishes; 

• Clients, with the support of an independent advocate/ representative where 
appropriate, should be fully involved in the planning, delivery, review and 
development of their individual service; 

• Clients should be provided with regular opportunities to give their feedback 
about the services they use and to become involved in the wider development 
of the overall service. 

8.5  A key component of the Specified Service is the support and monitoring of 
client’s health and general wellbeing. This includes the following requirements: 

• The client is encouraged and supported to develop and maintain a Health 
Action Plan and to access an Annual Health check via their GP; 

• Any perceived change in the condition of the client must be reported to the 
Council’s the relevant Care Management Team; 

• The Service Provider must ensure that all Support Staff have appropriate 
access to the name of the client’s General Practitioner; 

Page 31

http://sussexsafeguardingadults.procedures.org.uk/
https://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/Documents/Standards-legislation/Code-of-Conduct/Code-of-Conduct.pdf
https://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/Documents/Standards-legislation/Code-of-Conduct/Code-of-Conduct.pdf
https://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/Documents/Standards-legislation/Code-of-Conduct/Code-of-Conduct.pdf


November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

12 

 

• Whenever a client requests assistance to obtain medical attention or 
appears unable to make such a request, the GP must be contacted 
immediately; 

• Where the client will not give permission for the GP to be contacted, the 
Service Provider must immediately contact the Council’s relevant Care 
Management Team or EDS if outside of the Council’s usual working hours; 

• The Service Provider must ensure that whenever a client is found by its 
member of staff to be in need of emergency medical care, the Accident and 
Emergency Services are contacted immediately; 

• Where the Service Provider becomes aware that a client has been admitted 
to hospital or has died, the Council’s Supply Management Team must be 
informed using the Notification to Change to Service Form via the Web 
Portal. 

8.6 With respect to recruitment of staff the Service Provider will: 

• Employ suitably experienced, qualified and skilled staff to successfully 
deliver and manage the Specified Service as set out in this Specification; 

• Be responsible for the careful selection and the appropriate support of staff to 
work with the clients covered by this Specification; 

• Ensure clients are supported to be fully involved in the recruitment, 
selection and training of support staff; 

• By reason of the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 (Exemptions) 

(Amendment) Order 1986 the Service Provider shall require any person 
proposed to be employed and in contact with any client to complete a 
statement concerning their previous cautions or convictions for offences of 
any description; 

• In the event of failure to comply with this procedure, the Council reserves the 
right to require the employee to be withdrawn and an acceptable person to be 
substituted; 

8.7 In respect to workforce training, the Service Provider will ensure all staff are 
familiar with the Skills for Care ’Core Skills Framework’ 
http://www.skillsforhealth.org.uk/services/item/146-core-skills-training-
framework  

8.8 With respect to training and development of staff the Service Provider will: 

• Support, train, supervise and appraise all staff who are employed to ensure 
they are fully equipped to provide and/or manage the service; 

• Ensure provision of an induction process and a basic training programme for 
staff appropriate to the needs of clients, within an agreed period of taking up 
appointment; 

• Ensure that all staff have the necessary training, competencies and personal 
qualities to enable them to relate well and effectively support clients; 

• All staff have a competent understanding of Safeguarding issues in general 
and more specifically, are familiar with the Brighton & Hove, East & West 
Sussex Safeguarding Adults Policy & Procedures. All staff have a competent 
understanding of relevant legal and policy frameworks and are aware of their 
responsibilities in the context of their service delivery and in relation to their 
role. This includes: 

- The Care Act (2014) 
- The Mental Health Act 1983 and Mental Health Act 2007. 

- The Mental Capacity Act 2005 
- Safeguarding Adults policy and procedures 

Page 32

http://www.skillsforhealth.org.uk/services/item/146-core-skills-training-framework
http://www.skillsforhealth.org.uk/services/item/146-core-skills-training-framework


November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

13 

 

• Ensure staff receive the necessary training and management support to 
deliver the service to people with a wide range of complex or challenging 
needs and behaviour; 

• Ensure all staff understand the principles of valuing and empowering 
vulnerable people and treat individuals with dignity and respect whilst 
promoting their independence; 

• Train all staff to successfully deliver services in line with the principles of a 
diversity and inclusion policy; 

• Ensure staff have the ability to make judgments about need and have 
Supervisory staff able to support decision making with appropriate 
communication arrangements between Care Workers and Supervisors; 

• Inform staff of further training opportunities that may be made available, 
stating the service’s policy regarding such schemes as Quality and Credit 
Frame or short courses; 

• Ensure all staff have a working understanding of current policy drivers for 
housing, health, social care, children’s services, safer communities and 
related performance requirements; 

• Ensure all staff that have contact with clients always carry and make available 
easily recognizable appropriate forms of identification; 

• Ensure staff have good local and countywide knowledge about community 
services and opportunities to support the delivery of outcomes for individuals; 

8.8.1  For more information about workforce development and training opportunities 
available from the Council, please use the following link to the Adult Social Care 
Learning Portal - https://eastsussexlearning.org.uk/  

8.9  With respect to supervision and management of staff the Service Provider 
will: 

• Ensure staff are fully familiar with the objectives of the Support Plan and 
client plan in relation to each client and how the goals are to be achieved; 

• Effectively manage performance issues within the staff team; 
• Regularly monitor support practice and promote staff development through 

regular formal supervision, ongoing training and appraisal of staff; 
• Ensure staff accurately record all work with individuals and maintain case 

files; 
• Be required to demonstrate how and when staff reach required levels of 

competence to perform their duties. This will include evidence of training and 
assessment; 

• Ensure staff will work effectively with the client, taking into account their 
skills and style of working; 

• Assess client satisfaction with staff members who support them. It may 
be necessary to make changes if the client does not have the trust and 
confidence that is needed to make the relationship successful and if it 
is not possible to bring about the changes in the style of working that 
the client wants; 

• Ensure staff check regularly with clients that they are satisfied with the 
service received and that it is meeting their identified needs; 

• Ensure clients are asked how they wish to be addressed and the Service 
Provider and staff shall ensure that their wishes are observed at all times; 

• Ensure staff are never accompanied in their duties by any relative or friend. In 
cases where assistance is required, such provision is the responsibility of the 
Service Provider. 
 
 
 

Page 33

https://eastsussexlearning.org.uk/


November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

14 

 

8.10 With respect to continuity of staff support the Service Provider will: 

• Take steps to minimise the number of staff employed to meet the needs of a 
single client, so clients do not have to relate to many individuals and to limit 
the number of people holding confidential information. If a change of staff 
member is necessary for any reason, the Service Provider shall inform the 
client wherever practicable, prior to the introduction of a different member of 
staff. If the client cannot be contacted to advise of the change of staff this will 
be clearly recorded for quality monitoring purposes and explained to the client 
at the earliest opportunity; 

• With the consent of the client, keep daily log of daily support provided. This 
will be kept in the client's home with the Support Plan and client plan to provide 
information for staff providing care and support. In the event of more than one 
provider providing support, one support book/communication book will be 
maintained, with the Service Provider contributing information along with all 
other providers. It is the responsibility of the Service Provider to ensure staff 
consult the support book/communication book on each visit. 
 

8.11 With respect to availability of staff the Service Provider will: 

• Ensure that a sufficient "pool" of staff is available to ensure the consistency 
of the Specified Service during staff holidays or absences for any reason. 
In the event that the Service Provider is experiencing staffing difficulties 
that may affect service delivery, the Service Provider will notify the 
Council’s Supply Management Team within forty-eight (48) hours; 

• Inform the Council’s Supply Management Team where any members of staff 
of another party providing support to a client is unable or failing to undertake 
their expected support role or function; 

• Always offer clear reasons to the client on all occasions when the 
Specified Service has not been provided as expected; 

• Ensure any changes to service delivery are recorded for quality monitoring 
purposes; 

• Ensure any significant changes are reported to the Council’s Supply 
Management Team via the Notification of Change to Service Form using the 
Web Portal. 

9. SPECIFICATION OF QUALITY STANDARDS IN RELATION TO RISK 
MANAGEMENT 

9.1  The Service Provider is responsible for ensuring that client risk assessments are 
reviewed regularly on the following basis: 
• Annually as a minimum requirement for generic risk assessments; 
• Every six (6) months as a minimum requirement where manual handling and 

lifting or hoisting is being carried out; 
• More frequently if a client’s condition deteriorates or a potential risk is identified; 
• Risk assessments and reviews of them must always be clearly dated. 

9.2  The Council recognises that situations of risk may arise where a client’s decision 
to exercise their rights may result in a threat to the health and safety of either 
themselves or others. In such circumstances, the Service Provider must discuss 
concerns with the client and contact the Council’s relevant Care Management 
Team within one working day where this is not resolved. The Service Provider must 
record all concerns and the outcomes. 

Page 34



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

15 

 

9.3 The Service Provider must have in place formal written policies and procedures to 
ensure that an "assessment of risk" is conducted on all aspects of tasks to be 
carried out by staff. This will lead to the production of clear guidance for all staff on 
safety precautions to be taken and will form part of the staff induction process. 

9.4 There must be policies and procedures in place in order to identify particular 
hazards. This can be achieved by the Service Provider making available "hazard 
control sheets" to enable particular hazards to be identified and control 
mechanisms agreed. If it is not possible to rectify or control the hazard to an 
acceptable level, the Service Provider must refer back to the Council’s Care 
Management Team within one (1) working day of the hazard being identified. 

9.5 Potentially hazardous situations found by the Service Provider or member of staff 
in the client's home must be reported to the Council’s Care Management Team 
within one (1) working day. 

9.6  Where services are commissioned that require manual handling and lifting or 
hoisting the Service Provider will ensure that a copy of the risk assessment is sent 
to the Council’s relevant Care Management Team within two (2) working days of 
the service commencing. 

9.7  The Service Provider will ensure that in circumstances where equipment or 
assistive technology is used as part of the Specified Service to an client, that the 
condition of the equipment is taken into consideration as part of the risk 
assessment. The Service Provider will advise the Council’s Care Management 
Team of any associated risks within one (1) working day of the assessment taking 
place. 

9.8  Where the Service Provider becomes aware that a client may benefit from 
specialized equipment, e.g. aids, adaptations, assistive technology etc., the 
Council’s Supply Management Team must be notified who will liaise with the 
relevant Care Manager. The Service Provider must also ensure that the Council’s 
Supply Management Team is notified of any faulty equipment. 

9.9  The Service Provider shall have policies and procedures and training to 
support staff in understanding and managing challenging behaviour. In a situation 
where a client/Carer presents challenging behaviour to the member of staff, 
variation to the Specified Service may be deemed appropriate after immediate 
consultation with the Council’s Supply Management Team who will liaise with the 
Care Manager. 

9.10  Restraint is not to be used unless there is an immediate danger to the safety of 
the person/s concerned or others. The Service Provider must be compliant with 
the Government Paper Positive & Proactive Care – Reducing the need for 
restrictive interventions – 2014. This affords protection to the client, to staff and 
to the Service Provider. (See client specific specifications which clarify use of 
restraint in relation to each client group). 

10. SPECIFICATION OF QUALITY STANDARDS IN RELATION TO HEALTH 
AND SAFETY 

10.1  The Health and Safety at Work Act requires every organisation employing five (5) 
or more persons to prepare and periodically revise a written statement of 
their policy on Health and Safety and their arrangements to implement it. 

Page 35



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

16 

 

10.2  The Service Provider must ensure that Health and Safety legislation and 
all applicable regulations are complied with. 

10.4 The Service Provider must be able to demonstrate that it has an effective 
procedure to prevent the spread of infectious diseases and all Staff are 
adequately trained and comply with that procedure. 

10.5  It is the responsibility of the Service Provider to ensure its Support Staff are issued 
with appropriate equipment/protective clothing to carry out the tasks within this 
Specification. However, the type of clothing must have regard to the need to 
maintain the dignity and self-respect of the client. 

10.6  All equipment belonging to the client and used by a member of the Service 
Provider’s staff must be maintained in a safe condition at the client's expense. 
Equipment that appears in any way to be faulty must not be used until it has been 
checked, and if necessary repaired, by a qualified person. 

11. SPECIFICATION OF QUALITY STANDARDS IN RELATION TO HOUSING 
ENVIRONMENT 

11.1  As stated at paragraph 2.3 of this Specification, it is the responsibility of the 
Service Provider to work effectively in partnership with the provider of the 
accommodation / housing management service (i.e. the landlord) in order to 
ensure effective joined up delivery of services, effective communication and best 
outcomes for clients. 

11.2  The Service Provider will support clients to undertake some basic housing 
management tasks, such as reporting of repairs, and will support effective liaison 
with the Registered Housing Provider as appropriate. Such tasks and how they 
are carried out are likely to vary from scheme to scheme. 

11.3  Service Provider/s will actively monitor the living environment and report any 
safety or quality concerns to the landlord and/or statutory enforcement authorities 
in order that they may discharge their statutory duties. 

 

12. SPECIFICATION IN RELATION TO OTHER POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

12.1  The Service Provider will also be able to demonstrate that policies and 
procedures in respect to the following are in place and are satisfactory: 

• Client personal property (including key holding) and finances; 
• Out of hours and emergency procedures (including emergency access); 
• Client personal safety and security; 
• Staff personal safety and security; 
• Equality and Diversity; 
• Staff conduct and behaviour; 
 

13. CLIENT OUTCOMES, QUALITY AND PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

13.1  Client outcomes are specified within each of the client specific service 
specifications, namely: 

People with learning disabilities; 
People with mental health support needs; 
People with physical disabilities, sensory impairment and long term 
conditions; 
 

Page 36



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

17 

 

 

13.2 The quality and performance of the Specified Service will be monitored and 
evaluated using of a range of approaches and tools. This will be proportionate and 
suited to the size and type of service provided. The following monitoring 
mechanisms could be employed: 
• Care Management Review/s; 
• Safeguarding incidents and processes; 
• Client Survey/s; 
• Records of tenant meetings; 
• Complaints logs; 
• CQC Reports; 
• Other stakeholder feedback; 
• Key Performance Indicators. 
• Use of other recognised outcome evaluation tools. 

13.3  The main objectives of these quality and performance monitoring requirements are: 
• To ensure clients receive a service which meets the requirements of this 

Specification; 
• To support the Service Provider in the monitoring, review and 

development of their services; 
• To provide the Council with information that can be made available to the wider 

public to support choice; 
• To provide information that can support quality assurance and where 

necessary be used to address poor performance positively, robustly and 
fairly. 

13.4  The contract for this service will be monitored through the submission of a quality 
report template, tracking performance across the outcomes outlined in Section 
13.8. 

13.5  In addition to individual client reviews (see section 7), where appropriate there 
may be an initial six (6) monthly contract review meeting, followed by an annual 
contract review meetings. These meetings will consider the following (not 
exhaustive): 

• Outcomes for clients; 
• Quality of service (client satisfaction surveys ‘and/or alternative creative 

methods to obtain client feedback’ to be developed by providers and 
agreed by commissioners); 

• Incidents related to Safeguarding Adults / Client complaints; 
• Equality of service delivery (considering the impact of service delivery on 

clients of different age, gender, race, sexual orientation, faith or belief); 
• Performance against agreed targets; 
• compliance with this Specification and the Terms and Conditions 
• Partnership working. 

. 
13.6  Where quality monitoring information requests overlap with data requested 

annually by CQC or Skills for Care, then the request will be formatted in a 
consistent way to avoid unnecessary duplication. 

13.7 Performance and quality measures may be amended or further developed over 
the course of the contract in the light of experience. 

 

Page 37



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

18 

 

 

13.8 Outcomes and Performance Indicator Monitoring 

The Service Provider will be required to evidence the following outcomes for Adult 
Social Care funded residents. 

13.8.1 Resident experience of service provision 

Outcome How is this 
monitored 
/ 

assessed 

Target 

Clients report they receive clear information and 
advice to help them make choices 

Submitted 
by the 
Service 
Provider 
on request 

90% 

Clients report they feel in control of how their 
care and support is delivered 
Clients report their service has helped them to 
keep/make social contacts 
Clients report satisfaction with the care and 
support service 
Clients agree that all the staff from all the services 
at the scheme work well together to provide a 
good service 
Evidence that Clients have established contact 
with external services/ friends/ family can be  
supplied 

 

13.8.2 Performance and Workforce Indicators 

Indicator How is this 
monitored /  
assessed 

Target 

% of referrals responded to 
within three (3) working days 

Submitted by the 
Service Provider 
on request 

90% 

In-date and signed joint Support 
Plans 

100% 

% of staff who have had 
supervision with their line 
manager within last three (3)  
months 

95% 

% of staff with an HSC- 
qualification 

100%, within 12  
weeks of  
employment 

%of staff undertaking or 
completed a QCF qualification 

50% working 
towards a 
recognised H&SC 
qualification 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 38



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

19 

 

   

14. DEVELOPING THE SERVICE 

14.1 The Service Provider is required to work with Council to ensure the 
comprehensive development of all aspects of the Specified Service to meet 
key strategic aims and ensure management time is available to assist in the 
development of any revised arrangements for clients. 

15. THE COUNCIL’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

15.1 An essential component in meeting the needs of clients is the formulation and 
implementation of the individual Support Plan. It is the role and responsibility of 
the Council to ensure that the Service Provider is in receipt of an individual 
Support Plan prior to the commencement of the placement, or within two (2) 
working days for emergency placements. 

15.2 Services may be provided at the specific request of the Council in the case of 
an emergency, without the provision of a Support Plan which shall be 
provided within specified timescales. 

15.3 The Council is also responsible for ensuring that any amendments or 
alterations to the tasks, frequency, postponement, time allotted for Services 
or termination of the Service are notified to the Service Provider within one (1) 
working day of receipt of the same. 

15.4 It is the responsibility of the Council for reviewing the needs of clients and the 
Council will also reassess an individual's needs where the client, Service 
Provider, or Care Manager asserts that there may be a need to do so. 

15.5 It is the responsibility of the Council to review this Specification. The Council will 
take steps to ensure feedback from clients and Approved Providers is fed into 
reviews of the effectiveness and appropriateness of this Specification and the 
broader commissioning approach for accommodation based care and support 
AND housing support for working age adults. 

Page 39



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

20 

 

 

16. GLOSSARY 

    
Additional  
support 

That support which is purchased by or on behalf of a client from 
their the remainder of their Personal Budget, after the agreed 
contribution to core/background support has been deducted 
from their personal budget. 

Approved List The list maintained by the Council of Approved Providers of 
accommodation based care and support AND housing support 
for working age adults who meet the quality standards and 
service delivery requirements set out in this Specification to 
deliver the Specified Services 

Approved  
Provider 

A provider of accommodation based care and support AND 
housing support for working age adults that the Council has 
determined meets the quality standards and service delivery 
requirements set out in this Specification to deliver the  
Specified Services 

Client Plan A document developed by the Service Provider with clients 
and their representatives that sets out the needs and 
preferences of the client and how the service will be  
delivered. 

Core or 
background 
support 

That support which is shared between clients in a supported 
living scheme. As a condition of living and/or moving into a 
scheme, each client must agree to this contribution to  
core/background support from their personal budget. The level 
of core/background support will vary from scheme to scheme. 

Council East Sussex County Council 

Pooled Personal 
Budget 

An arrangement whereby clients agree to contribute to an 
agreed sum from their Personal Budget as a contribution to a 
pool of funds that can be used to purchased shared support or 
activities. 

Service Provider The Approved Provider delivering the relevant Specified 
Services 

Specification This document. 

Support Plan An ESCC document developed by Adult Social Care with 
clients and their representatives that sets out how assessed 
needs will be met with desired outcomes and timeframes. 

Total 
Communication 

Total Communication describes an approach to supporting a 
person which recognises an individual’s support needs around 
communication, using communication aids and techniques to 
create a supportive communication environment. 
For more information please visit the ESCC website: 
www.eastsussex.gov.uk/socialcare/disability/learning/choices/co  
mmunicatingyourownway  

 

Page 40

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/socialcare/disability/learning/choices/communicatingyourownway
http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/socialcare/disability/learning/choices/communicatingyourownway


November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

21 

 

APPENDIX 1 – CLIENT-SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS 

Specific Requirements for Adults with a Physical Disability, Sensory Impairment 
and/or Long Term Condition 

1. Service Model 

The Social Model of Disability will underpin services commissioned under the 
Approved List and to which this Specification applies. The Social Model of Disability is 
defined as follows: 

The social model of disability says that disability is caused by the way society is 
organised, rather than by a person’s impairment or difference. It looks at ways of 
removing barriers that restrict life choices for disabled people. When barriers are 
removed, disabled people can be independent and equal in society, with choice and 
control over their own lives. 

Disabled people developed the social model of disability because the traditional medical 
model did not explain their personal experience of disability or help to develop more 
inclusive ways of living. 

An ‘impairment’ is defined as long-term limitation of a person’s physical, mental or 
sensory function. 

2. Service Outcomes 

Clients will report the following outcomes: 

2.1 The client is in control of their lives. There is overwhelming evidence that 
where people are in control of their care, support, finances and their day to day 
activities, there are improved outcomes for disabled people. 

Many disabled people have long term conditions that, with motivational support, 
information and advice, they can self-manage on a day to day basis and reduce 
the risks of exacerbations. 

Taking control of your care, support, health and finances is not often achieved 
in a single step, particularly if the client is disempowered. Ensuring a client has 
access to advocacy when their voice is not being heard is a key structural 
component of personalisation. The Service Provider shall support the client to 
access advocacy services where appropriate. 

2.2  The client maximises their independence. Care and support should be 
focused on maximising the independence of clients, enabling them to ‘have the 
same choice, control and freedom as any other citizen – at home, at work, and 
as members of the community’. 

2.3  The client feels healthy and has a sense of physical and emotional 
wellbeing. Clients may have a range of health and social care needs; a 
significant proportion will be living with long term conditions which will have an 

Page 41



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

22 

 

impact on their physical and mental health. Support provided should focus on 
improving physical health AND emotional well-being, working in partnership with 
community health and social care services. 

 
2.4  The client is safe and secure in their home and in the community. Clients 

may be vulnerable to abuse. Clients will be coming from a range of different 
settings, such as discharge from residential care or moving from an unsafe or 
insecure area and will need to be protected against abuse. 

3. Additional Communication Requirements 

3.1  The Service Provider is required to develop and use appropriate 
communication systems where people have little or no verbal communication, 
taking guidance from families and friends to understand what gestures or 
sounds may mean. 

Page 42



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

23 

 

APPENDIX 2 – CLIENT-SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS 

Specific Requirements for Adults with a Learning Disability 

1. Service Model 

The Social Model of Disability will underpin services commissioned under the 
Approved List and to which this Specification applies. The Social Model of Disability is 
defined as follows: 

The social model of disability says that disability is caused by the way society is 
organised, rather than by a person’s impairment or difference. It looks at ways of 
removing barriers that restrict life choices for disabled people. When barriers are 
removed, disabled people can be independent and equal in society, with choice and 
control over their own lives. 

2. Service Delivery 

 2.1 The Service Provider will adhere to the nine principles of Building the Right 
Support (2015): 
1. I have an enjoyable and interesting life; 
2. My care and support is well planned; 
3. I have choice and control about my care and support; 
4. I live in the community with support; 
5. I have a choice about where I live and who I live with; 
6. I get good care and support from health services; 
7. I get help from experts in the community if I need extra support; 
8. I get help to stay out of trouble with the law if I need it; 
9. If I need to stay in hospital because of my mental health or behaviour I don’t 

stay longer than I need to. 

 2.2 Support for people with a learning disability will be designed with the client to 
enable them to maintain as much control over their own lives as is possible. 

 2.3 Shared Support: Activities where shared support may be appropriate include 
meal times, social and community activities. Shared support should be planned 
and delivered with clients and based on clients shared interests and 
preferences. 

 2.4 Supporting people with behaviour that challenges: Where people display 
behaviour that challenges, the Service Provider will work within the Department 
of Health Guidelines: ‘Positive and Proactive Care: reducing the need for 
restrictive interventions’ (2014) and the PBS Academy ‘Positive Behavioural 
Support Competencies Framework’ (2015) 

 

 

 

 

Page 43



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

24 

 

3. Service Outcomes 

Clients will report the following outcomes: 

 3.1 The client is in control of their lives. People with a learning disability are 
supported to be involved in all areas of their lives with appropriate support from 
staff, friends, family or advocacy where needed. The use of person 

centered planning and similar models of support are a part of keeping services 
client focused. 

3.2  The client maximises their independence. Care and support should be 
focused on maximising the independence through the use of effective risk 
assessment and management. 

 3.3 The client feels healthy and has a sense of physical and emotional well 
being. Client with a learning disability are supported to have an Annual Health 
Check and the resulting Health Action Plan is used to coordinate their health 
needs. Client with a learning disability are supported to have an up to date 
hospital passport, access ‘mainstream health services and health improvement 
provision and to lead a healthy life. 

 3.4 The client is safe and secure in their home and in the community. Clients 
may be vulnerable to abuse – the Service Provider will ensure that clients are 
supported to remain safe in their own home and community and are able to report 
any concerns about their safety. 

4. Additional Communication Requirements 

4.1 All information for clients will be available in easy read and accessible formats. 
The Service Provider will be required to develop and use appropriate 
communication systems where people have little or no verbal communication, 
taking guidance from families and friends to understand what gestures or sounds 
may mean.

Page 44



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

25 

 

APPENDIX 3 – CLIENT-SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS 

 

Specific Requirements for Adults with Mental Health Support Needs The aims of 
a mental health supported living service are: 

To provide supported accommodation for clients aged 18 and over, who are eligible to 
receive Adult Social Care funding set out in the Care Act 2014 or Statutory aftercare 
requirements in Sec 117 and who are vulnerable as a result of their mental health. 

1. Service Model 

The Recovery model1 will underpin services commissioned under the Approved List 
and to which this Specification applies. In mental health, recovery does not always 
refer to the process of complete recovery from a mental health problem in the way that 
we may recover from a physical health problem. For many people, the concept of 
recovery is about staying in control of their life despite experiencing a mental health 
problem. Professionals in the mental health sector often refer to the 'recovery model' 
to describe this way of thinking. 

Putting recovery into action means focusing care on supporting recovery and building 
the resilience of people with mental health problems, not just on treating or managing 
their symptoms. There is no single definition of the concept of recovery for people with 
mental health problems, but the guiding principle is hope - the belief that it is possible 
for someone to regain a meaningful life, despite serious mental illness. 

2 . Service Outcomes 

Clients will report the following outcomes: 

2.1 The client is in control of their lives. There is overwhelming evidence that 
where people are in control of their care, support, finances and their day to day 
activities, there are improved outcomes for disabled people. 

Many disabled people have long term conditions that, with motivational support, 
information and advice, they can self-manage on a day to day basis and reduce 
the risks of exacerbations. 

Taking control of your care, support, health and finances is not often achieved 
in a single step particularly if the client is disempowered. Ensuring a client has 
access to advocacy when their voice is not being heard is a key structural 
component of personalisation. The Service Provider shall support the client to 
make complaints or changes to the way they receive their care and, where 
required, clients shall be supported to access advocacy services. 

2.2 The client maximises their independence. Care and support should be focused 
on maximising the independence of clients enabling them to ‘have the same 
choice, control and freedom as any other citizen – at home, at work, and as 
members of the community’. 

1 https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/a-to-z/r/recovery  

Page 45

https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/a-to-z/r/recovery


November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

26 

 

Clients should be supported to develop plans that set out how they can access 
and flourish in their local community. There should also be plans in place, co-
designed to develop actions when the client starts to feel unwell, or triggers that 
can raise alertness with staff to spot if a client starts to approach crisis. 

2.3  The client feels healthy and has a sense of physical and emotional 
wellbeing. Clients may have a range of health and social care needs, a 
significant proportion will be living with long term conditions which will have an 
impact on their physical and mental health. Support provided should focus on 
improving physical health AND emotional well-being, working in partnership with 
mainstream and specialist community health and social care services. 

 2.4 The client is safe and secure in their home and in the community. Clients 
may be vulnerable to abuse. Clients will be coming from a range of different 
settings, such as discharge from residential care or moving from an unsafe or 
insecure area and will need to be protected against abuse. This will ensure they 
are free from discrimination and harassment, protected through safeguarding 
processes across all aspects including physical, mental and financial abuse. 

Clients will be supported to plan where they will live, be involved in moving on 
and encouraged to take the lead and responsibility such as saving for deposits, 
furniture or other accommodation expenses. 

Clients will be supported to manage their own finances and supported to access 
benefit and housing advice alongside housing tenancy and other administrative 
requirements. 

 3. Support Planning 

3.1  The Service Provider will evidence within clients’ support plans how the plan 
adopts the outcome principles above. These will be developed and co-produced 
by the individual and their relevant care professional (CPN/Social Worker) as 
well as other individuals involved in their network of support such as carers, 
family and friends. 

 3.2 The Service Provider shall ensure that care and support, as detailed in a support 
plan, is structured and outcome-focused with goals set for both the client and the 
Service Provider to work towards. 

Page 46



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

27 

 

PART 3 – CATEGORIES TO WHICH THE SERVICE PROVIDER IS APPOINTED 

As set out in the Contract Particulars 

Page 47



November 2018 V0.02 updated July 2022 

 

28 

 

PART 4: ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS IN RESPECT OF CATEGORIES WITH PERSONAL CARE 

1. REGISTRATION WITH CQC 

1.1 The Service Provider must be registered with the CQC to provide personal care 

for a minimum of twelve (12) months, unless otherwise authorised in writing by 

the Council. 

1.2 Throughout the Term, the Service Provider shall be required to hold an 

“Outstanding” or “Good” CQC rating. The Service Provider shall notify the Council 

within five (5) Working Days in the event that their rating falls below this 

requirement. 

1.3 In the event that the Service Provider’s CQC rating falls below the standards set out 

in Paragraph 1.2 of this Part 4 of Schedule 2, the Council shall be entitled to suspend 

the Service Provider’s appointment to the Approved List until such time as the CQC 

rating returns to a minimum of “Good”. 

1.4 In the event that the Service Provider’s CQC Registration is suspended or 

terminated, or the Service Provider otherwise ceases to be registered with the 

CQC, the Council shall be entitled to suspend the Service Provider’s appointment 

to the Approved List until such time as the CQC Registration is restored or remove 

the Service Provider from the Approved List and terminate the Agreement. In the 

event the Service Provider is removed from the Approved List, the Service 

Provider shall not be entitled to reapply until the later of: 

1.4.1 six (6) months from the date of termination and removal; or 

1.4.2 the Service Provider’s CQC registration being restored. 
 

Page 48


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Member on 25 April 2024
	4 Permitted Extension - Supported Accommodation Approved Provider List
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2


